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RePoRt oF the PResident
October 2010

To the Board of Trustees, Alumnae, Faculty, and Friends of 
Wellesley College 

I am pleased to submit the annual financial report of Wellesley College for the 
2009-2010 academic—and fiscal—year, during which we dedicated ourselves to 
building on changes made the prior year as we adjusted to the new financial reality . 
This last year, it was more evident than ever that the strength of our institution lies 
in the individuals who make up our community, and despite the financial problems 
that have had such a serious effect on our economy, I think Wellesley remains 
strong and stable, and is prepared for future challenges .

In the letters that follow, Andrew evans, Vice president for Finance and 
treasurer, and Deborah Foye Kuenstner ’80, Chief Investment officer, report in 
depth on the financial status of the College and the strength of our endowment . 
We made aggressive budgetary and investment adjustments to accommodate the 
new financial reality, and enacted organizational and financial changes that not 
only helped us through the immediate crisis, but positioned us well for continued 
strength and efficiency in the future . Those accommodations will continue to be 
refined in order to stabilize the College for the long term and to meet any further 
challenges following from the recession and global financial crisis . 

Organizational Realignments 

We began the new academic year with 90 fewer staff positions, resulting from a 
judicious combination of layoffs, attrition, and retirements . We needed to rethink 
the way we were organized to support our broader institutional goals .

In consultation with trustees, organizational experts, and others,  
I made the decision to combine the Division of Administration and planning  
with the Division of Finance, eliminating the position of Vice president of 
Administration and planning . Andy evans oversees this newly formed division .  
our new structure allows for greater efficiencies, particularly in regard to budgetary 
planning and implementation, and streamlines the College’s financial operations 
and management .

In addition, I created the position of Dean of Admission and Financial 
Aid, which has responsibility for integrating the efforts of the College with regard 
to outreach, enrollment, financial aid and educational financing, and also—
importantly—for providing unified and strategic leadership . Jennifer Desjarlais, 
formerly our Dean of Admission, assumed this new, larger role . 

It is critical that Wellesley have a leadership structure that guides academic 
planning and articulates a vision for the College, while ensuring that resources are 
mobilized and properly allocated to support college priorities . Therefore, I also 
established the new position of provost and Dean of the College, strengthening and 
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expanding the existing Dean of the College role . Andrew Shennan assumed this 
position, with my full confidence and support, as well as that of the faculty, senior 
staff, and trustees . 

The new provost post has responsibility for cross-institutional planning, 
so as a first step in recognizing this, I eliminated the position of Vice president for 
Information Services and created in its stead the role of Chief Information officer . 
The CIo will be responsible for the library and information technology and reports 
directly to the provost .

Continuing to Invest in our Intellectual Community 

even while making these financial adjustments, we have worked to ensure that 
Wellesley would be able to build further on its strengths . We did this by articulating 
our major priorities and instituting planning initiatives for them, via the Academic 
planning Committee and a series of dedicated task Forces . 

The College’s high academic standing is due almost entirely to the  
quality of our faculty . Despite financial constraints, we decided to move forward 
with strategic searches for new faculty, adding twelve remarkable tenure-track 
members . These new hires are an investment that speaks to our determination to 
sustain Wellesley’s reputation for academic excellence, and reinforce the intellectual 
depth of our faculty . They also bring us crucial new areas of specialization—all 
while preserving our impressive student-to-faculty ratio and the close interaction 
between students and faculty that is such an important part of the Wellesley 
educational experience . 

Moreover, this year the number of federal grants and individual fellowships 
awarded to our faculty exceeded last year’s by a significant margin, with 34 grants 
awarded to individual faculty members . Wellesley’s scholar-teachers focus on 
integrating their scholarship with their teaching and mentoring—an important 
element in our ability to create a truly transformative education for our students . 

Wellesley students also did an exceptional job in this year’s competition 
for fellowships and scholarships, winning four Fulbright Grants, two Barry M . 
Goldwater Scholarships, a Thomas J . Watson Foundation Fellowship, three 
Woodrow-Wilson-Rockefeller Brothers Fund Fellowships for Aspiring teachers of 
Color, and these are only the highlights . Additionally, nine recent alumnae received 
national Science Foundation Research Fellowships, and one alumna, Bilin Zhuang, 
’09, received the prestigious American physical Society 2009 leroy Apker Award 
for outstanding achievement in physics . 

The College has continued to pursue its commitment to a vibrant and 
contemporary liberal arts education . Wellesley launched three groundbreaking 
initiatives this year—each of which demonstrates the power of Wellesley’s liberal 
arts curriculum: the Madeleine Korbel Albright Institute for Global Affairs; the 
Three-College Collaboration, an innovative model for academic partnership forged 
with olin College and Babson College; and our anchoring role in one of the 
national Academy of engineering “Grand Challenges” regional summits . These 
initiatives have a common theme: solutions to complex modern problems will 
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increasingly require the insight, leadership and ability to integrate diverse streams of 
knowledge . And there is arguably no better foundation for integrating knowledge 
across disciplines than a liberal arts education . 

Finally, while we have long known the value of the intercultural model 
embodied in our office of Religious and Spiritual life, I was especially delighted 
when Victor Kazanjian, Dean of Religious and Spiritual life, was invited to the 
White House Forum on Interfaith Community Service . This was a much-deserved 
recognition of the leadership Dean Kazanjian has demonstrated in developing  
this model on campus, as well as an affirmation of the particular strength of 
Wellesley’s approach . 

The Ongoing Support of our Community

We have always been fortunate in being able to count on the dedication of our 
alumnae to Wellesley and its ideals . I am delighted to report that, in the face of the 
economic downturn, annual giving to the College actually increased . We achieved 
our $10 million goal for unrestricted funds—a high-water mark reached only once 
before in the last 25 years; moreover (and importantly), the percentage of alumnae 
who made a gift increased for the first time in almost a decade . A significant portion 
of these unrestricted funds will be dedicated to financial aid, and it is these very 
generous alumnae contributions that continue to make a difference in sustaining 
Wellesley and securing its future . 

overall, we were able to raise $33 million in cash, well surpassing our target 
of $29 million . When the value of in-kind gifts of art is included, as well as monies 
from institutional government grants, total support raised for this last fiscal year 
came to $36 million . 

There is no doubt that we face a new economic reality, one that is already 
reshaping the landscape of higher education . Wellesley is in an enviable position of 
strength, and we know that sustaining that strength requires continuing to make 
informed, judicious choices that align with and promote our institutional priorities . 
The shared commitment of the entire Wellesley community is essential, and I remain 
grateful for the many ways in which this commitment has been demonstrated .

Yours truly,

H . Kim Bottomly 
President
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RePoRt oF the ViCe PResident FoR FinAnCe 

And tReAsuReR
October 2010

To the Board of Trustees of Wellesley College

This Annual Report presents the operating and audited results at Wellesley 
College for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. For fiscal year 2009–2010 
the College’s net assets increased by $45.7 million. The College’s endowment 
increased by $43.0 million and was valued at $1.33 billion as of June 30, 2010. 

Results of Fiscal Year 2010

Wellesley College is an institution that is strong academically and remains strong 
financially despite the negative affects that the economy had on most educational 
institutions last year. The gain from a positive investment return of 9.34% offset 
by the spending from the endowment needed to support the College’s operations 
resulted in an increase in endowment value from $1.29 billion to $1.33 billion. 
(Further details about our endowment are discussed in the Chief Investment 
officer’s report .) The funds used during the year to support the operating budget 
and to fund various capital projects equaled 6 .4% and 5 .5% of the endowment 
market value for the one-year and the three-year rolling average, respectively . 
During the course of the year, the endowment per student increased by 3.9% 
from $581,955 to $604,566, and gifts received were $33.1 million.

General Endowment Pool, 2001–2010
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The operating budget (Schedule A) in this fiscal year reflects revenues 
of $235.2 million and expenses of $228.3 million, resulting in an operating 
surplus of $6.9 million. This surplus was added to the College’s operating reserves . 
Increasing reserves is an important part of the College’s planning strategy to address 
any expected revenue shortfall in fiscal years 2010–2011 and beyond . Reserves  
will be a source of funding for one-time expenses that will yield longer-term 
expense reductions .

The revenue base for the operating budget was well diversified, 
with five primary revenue sources: tuition income (39%); endowment 
(35%); auxiliary enterprises; including room and board (13%); gifts used for 
operations (9%); and other sources of revenue, including sponsored research 
(4%) . Total operating revenues in this fiscal year increased by $8.4 million 
over fiscal year 2009.

operating expenses had an incremental increase of 0 .7% over fiscal year 
2009 . As might be expected in a labor-intensive institution, about 50% of the 
operating budget was used for salaries and benefits .

At the end of each fiscal year, the College’s interest rate swap is “marked to 
market” (which means that the market value of the swap is reflected in the audited 
financial statements) . As of June 30, 2010, the College recorded a liability of $6 .8 
million (reflecting the mark to market of the swap) owing to extremely low treasury 
rates at June 30, 2010 . This is an increase from the value of a $4 .2 million liability 
as of June 30, 2009 and results in a $2 .6 million reduction to the College’s net 
assets for fiscal year 2010 .

Financial Strength and Flexibility

The College operates under a set of principles for financial strength and flexibility . 
These principles were established to support Wellesley College’s institutional values 
and strategic priorities by preserving the purchasing power of the endowment, 
ensuring that the growth rates of income and expenses are in balance, and creating 
reserves to mitigate unanticipated shocks to the balanced budget .

The College’s endowment spending policy addresses the need for a 
strong, stable, and growing income stream from the endowment to support 
operations, as well as the long-term objective of maintaining its purchasing power . 
The methodology for setting annual spending from the endowment is based on 
a combination of the prior year’s spending and the endowment value . In fiscal 
year 2010, the one-year spending rate was 6 .4% . This spending policy is reviewed 
periodically to ensure that the endowment continues to provide a consistent and 
healthy income stream to support operations and to maintain its purchasing power . 
We plan to complete the 2010 review shortly and update the endowment spending 
policy for fiscal year 2011–2012 .

The budget process for the College is multi-year and built around 
institutional priorities. It allows for inclusiveness and institution-wide input, and 
that uses all sources of funds including restricted income sources . For fiscal year 

Revenues (FY10)

tuition and Fees 39%

Sponsored Research 3%

other Income 1%

Gifts 9%

Auxiliary enterprises 13%

endowment 35%

Expenses (FY10)
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Departmental,  library, 
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General Institutional, 
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Financial Aid 20%
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2010, the College’s management structure has had the provost as chairing a Senior 
Staff Budget Subgroup and in building the budget for this last year, this subgroup’s 
goal was to ensure that the College’s budget aligned resources to the College’s 
academic mission . 

During fiscal year 2009, the College’s endowment was negatively affected 
by the downturn in the economy . The College took immediate steps to soften 
the negative impact of this endowment loss to the operating budget . These steps 
included reductions in discretionary spending, reorganizing the College to reduce 
non-faculty positions and a careful review of planned construction projects . The 
results of the steps taken for fiscal year 2010 reflect the College’s action of reducing 
approximately 80 non-faculty positions—through attrition, retirement, and layoffs . 

During fiscal year 2010, the College continued to take the same approach 
to investing $20 million of existing operating cash that we do to investing the 
endowment . As of June 30, 2010, the cumulative excess investment return over 
typical short-term interest rates on these funds totaled approximately $2 .7 million . 
This excess will be reserved and (with extended time for planning) used to fund 
extraordinary expenses in the future .

Institutional Values and Priorities

One of the College’s longest-held institutional values is our need-blind 
admission policy. Wellesley believes that students should be considered for 
admission only on the basis of their talents and personal qualities, not on their 
ability to pay. 

The College continues to measure the effects of this important policy 
against other expenses . over the past five years, there has been an increase in the use 
of unrestricted resources for financial aid, as shown on the left . While the percentage 
of students receiving financial aid assistance has remained fairly constant over the 
past 5 years (52% to 55%), the percentage of student financial aid expenditures 
supported by restricted revenues has decreased from 85% in 2006 to 72% in 2010, 
resulting in a need to fund more of the expenditure with unrestricted resources in 
order to continue to support this important value with unrestricted resources .

The maintenance and enhancement of the College’s significant physical 
plant/infrastructure is an important institutional priority. Therefore, beginning 
in fiscal year 2010, the College began to build a fund for asset renewal and 
replacement (ARR). (In the past, the College’s operating budget did not include 
funding for depreciation or ARR .)

In order to fully fund this new ARR, the College would need to add 
approximately $10 million to the operating budget . to accomplish this, the College 
has implemented a phased-in approach to funding ARR, starting with $500,000 in 
fiscal year 2010 . At the same time, the College continues to work on some of the 
projects identified in the Comprehensive Facilities plan that was completed during 
fiscal year 2007 . This plan established the facilities-planning principles and factors 
used in setting facilities priorities and documented the College’s use of space—
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including future needs . This plan also evaluated the condition of facilities and their 
ability to meet long-term program demands .

Future Challenges and Outlook

The College’s principles for financial strength and flexibility continue to guide us as 
we work on addressing the budget issues resulting from the tumultuous economic 
events during fiscal 2009, and our multi-year budget process remains invaluable 
for planning: we are already preparing solutions to address projected deficits in the 
coming years . So I am happy to report that with our present budget-management 
structure (under the leadership of president Bottomly), the College is well 
positioned to meet the financial challenges of the future . 

Respectfully submitted,

Andrew B . evans
Vice President for Finance and Treasurer
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RePoRt oF the ChieF inVestment oFFiCeR
October 2010

To the Board of Trustees of Wellesley College

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the Wellesley College endowment had  
a market value of $1.330 billion, versus $1.287 billion on June 30, 2009, an 
increase of approximately $43 million. The investment return for the year earned 
by the endowment portfolio, net of investment management fees, was 9.3%. 

Recent Developments

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, global capital markets enjoyed a partial 
recovery from the upheaval of the financial crisis . equity markets continued the rally 
that began in the spring of 2009, and ran through the end of the year . In the first 
half of 2010, concerns about the strength of the economic recovery grew, sending 
equity markets lower . They continued to show considerable volatility, with long-term 
interest rates ending lower for the fiscal year . In spite of this challenging environment, 
Wellesley’s endowment was able to support current operations and earn a return that 
increased the purchasing power of the endowment .

Investment returns by asset class, and the relative performance versus 
benchmarks for each asset class, are summarized below .  

Total Return by Asset Class, Year Ended June 30, 2010

 

U.S. Equity 19 .2% 14 .4% S&p 500

International Equity 14 .4 10 .4 MSCI AC World ex-u .S .

Private Equity 8 .7 — Cambridge Associates (1)

Real Assets -7 .5 — Real Assets Benchmark (2)

Semi-marketable (3) 11 .6 8 .0 Cambridge Associates Hedge  
    Fund-of-Funds Index

Fixed Income 15 .8 8 .9 Fixed Income Benchmark (4)

Total Portfolio 9 .3%  

1 private equity results are measured against the Cambridge Associates private equity, Venture Capital 
and Distressed Indices, with final returns not yet reported at the time of this writing .

2 Real Assets Benchmark is a weighted average of the nCReIF property, nCReIF timber, Goldman 
Sachs Commodities Index, and the Cambridge Associates oil & Gas Index . Final returns had not yet 
been reported at the time of this writing for the Cambridge Associates oil & Gas Index .

3 Semi-marketable investments include absolute return and hedge funds .
4 Fixed Income Benchmark is a weighted average of the Barclays 5+ Year treasury Index, Barclays  

>5 Year tIpS Index and the Citigroup World Government Bond Index .

Wellesley  
Comparative  
Index Market Benchmark/Portfolio return
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The majority of Wellesley’s investment managers in public equities, fixed 
income, and semi-marketable strategies delivered strong results in both absolute terms 
and relative to their benchmarks . The portfolio also benefited from strong results in 
venture capital and energy .  These positives, however, were offset by continued write-
downs in our real estate investments .

Longer-Term Results

Compound annual returns over the last five and ten years were 5 .2% and 4 .4% 
respectively, net of investment management fees . Although these results are 
disappointing relative to the College’s need for returns that cover both spending and 
inflation, long-term results remain strong relative to alternative strategies; the College’s 
well-diversified endowment has significantly outperformed u .S . equity investments 
(represented by the S&p 500, as well as the 65% stock/35% bond portfolio, as shown 
below) . These better-than-average longer-term portfolio results are at least partly 
attributable to our gradual shift over the past several years from traditional asset classes 
to alternatives with higher long-term return expectations . 

Policy Portfolio and Strategy Going Forward

With the goal of balancing long-term returns and risks, The Wellesley College 
Investment Committee has established a long-term policy portfolio to guide asset 
allocation . over time, the endowment has gradually diversified into less-efficient 
asset classes, such as venture capital, distressed debt, and energy . In addition, the 
Investment office focuses on adding value within each asset category through the 
selection of specific investments and investment managers, with the specific goal of 
gaining exposure to outstanding investment management teams in each asset class .

The table on the left details the policy portfolio and the actual asset allocation 
as of June 30, 2010 .  exposure to total long-term alternative assets was 43% of the 
portfolio, relative to a long-term target of 50% . Additionally, relative to the long-term 
policy portfolio targets, the endowment portfolio was over-weighted in fixed income 
and cash at the end of the fiscal year and modestly under-weighted in traditional 
equities . The portfolio continues to maintain sufficient exposure to liquid investments 
to maintain the steady level of financial support it provides to the College’s operations 
and to provide for portfolio liquidity needs . 

Total Annualized Return on Endowment, Year Ended June 30, 2010

 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years

Wellesley portfolio 9 .3% -2 .8% 5 .2% 4 .4%

S&p 500 Index 14 .4 -9 .8 -0 .8 -1 .6

65/35 Stock/Bond portfolio (5) 12 .9 -3 .5 1 .8 1 .6

5 A commonly used measure of portfolio performance is a comparison with a passive portfolio 
consisting of 65% stocks, as measured by the S&p 500 Index, and 35% bonds, as measured by 
the Citigroup Broad Investment Grade Index .

Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2010

u .S . equities 19%    19%

International equities 19 18

total equities 38 37

private equity 16 19

Real Assets 16 15

Semi-marketable 18  9

total Alternative Assets 50 43

Fixed Income & Cash 12 20

total portfolio 100% 100%

Asset 
Class

Policy 
Portfolio

Asset 
Allocation
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Although it will take some time before long-term returns recover from 
the damage wrought by the financial crisis, the endowment is positioned to benefit 
from exposure both to traditional and non-traditional assets, all managed by 
outstanding investment firms . I believe that through actions taken in the last year 
we are well-positioned to benefit from excellent investment opportunities and to 
maintain important investment flexibility .

After a period of such economic turmoil, it is appropriate to examine 
the soundness of the underpinnings of our long-term strategy . We regularly 
review our assumptions and expectations with the goal of refining the assets held 
in the Wellesley portfolio in order to provide optimal risk/return characteristics . 
Consequently, we have taken actions to increase the endowment’s exposure to those 
areas in which disruptions in markets have created some attractive investment 
opportunities . 

It is not clear that the tough times are behind us, however, so we are 
fortunate that the success of the College’s long-term investment strategy is not 
predicated on our ability to make accurate short-term assessments of market 
movements . A thoughtful and disciplined approach to asset allocation and manager 
selection will continue to be the drivers of investment performance over both the 
intermediate and long term .

What is safe to say is that all college and university endowments face 
ongoing challenges as a result of the credit crisis, and Wellesley is no exception . The 
College is fortunate, however, to have a thoughtful Investment Committee, and an 
endowment portfolio invested with outstanding investment managers . Short-term 
investment results will undoubtedly vary—sometimes significantly, as they did last 
year—but the portfolio is positioned to benefit from its exposure to traditional and 
nontraditional investments, all carefully chosen and monitored for their quality, 
their contribution to the diversification of risk, and their long-term return potential .

Members of the College community with questions, suggestions, or 
thoughts about the management of the Wellesley College endowment are invited to 
contact me at any time .

Thank you .

Sincerely, 

Deborah F . Kuenstner 
Chief Investment Officer
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  2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Total College Summary
total Revenues $331,744  $491,051  $182,338  ($122,136) $283,897 
total expenses 219,273  224,722  225,903  252,458  238,174 
 net Surplus (Deficit) $112,471  $266,329  ($43,565) ($374,594) $45,723 

Current Operations Summary
Revenues including trustee  

approved use of unrestricted bequests $195,463  $213,514  $221,417  $226,808  $235,248 
expenditures including addition to reserves 195,460  213,507  221,416  226,803  235,219 
 operating Surplus $3  $7  $1  $5  $29 

Resources
unrestricted Gifts $8,761  $8,421  $8,848  $8,268  $8,847 
endowment Gifts and Bequests 23,854  19,908  10,266  18,556  18,586 
planned Gifts 2,411  1,389  2,943  3,389  1,219 
Facilities Gifts 10,789  22,390  14,341  6,607  3,291 
Current-use Gifts and Grants 10,097  12,071  1,367  1,422  1,174 
 total $55,912  $64,179  $37,765  $38,242  $33,117 

Endowment
Market Value $1,412,604  $1,672,473  $1,629,447  $1,287,284  $1,330,045 
total Return (loss) $175,886  $312,636  $12,487  ($291,066) $116,294 
total Return used for operations $69,159  $74,496  $76,584  $81,199  $86,612 

unit Value (not in $000s) $595 .46  $691 .71  $668 .81  $523 .84  $535 .74 
Investment Return—total 14 .0%  22 .7%  1 .2%  (17 .0%) 9 .3% 
 Yield 5 .9%  8 .1%  7 .8%  2 .8%  4 .6% 
 Appreciation 8 .1%  14 .6%  (6 .6%) (19 .8%) 4 .7% 
    
Average endowment operating Support
(% of Average Market Value)
 one-Year Average 5 .0% 4 .7% 4 .6% 5 .4% 6 .4%
 Three-Year Average 5 .1% 4 .9% 4 .7% 4 .9% 5 .5%
     
Assets    
total College net Assets $1,639,592 $1,905,921 $1,862,356 $1,488,848 $1,534,571

FinAnCiAl highlights      
(in $000s)
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sChedule A     summary of operating revenues and expenditures  
 Years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 (in $000s)

Revenues from Operations 
tuition and Fees  $90,400   $86,543   $3,857  4 .5% 

endowment Income 
 education and General Support  57,276   54,863   2,413  4 .4% 
 total endowment Support   57,276   54,863   2,413  4 .4% 

unrestricted Gifts   8,825   8,299   526  6 .3% 
unrestricted Bequests  2,000   2,442   (442)  (18 .1%)
Restricted Gifts and use of Reserves  3,623   3,712   (89)  (2 .4%)
other Income  3,308   4,619   (1,311)  (28 .4%)
Student Financial Aid 
 endowment Income  25,920   24,292   1,628  6 .7% 
 Federal and State Grants  2,881   2,330   551  23 .6% 
 Restricted Gifts  2,718   3,339   (621)  (18 .6%)
 total Student Financial Aid  31,519   29,961   1,558  5 .2% 

total education and General  196,951   190,439   6,512  3 .4% 

Sponsored Research  7,015   6,237   778  12 .5% 
Auxiliary enterprises  31,282   30,132   1,150  3 .8% 
 total Revenues   235,248   226,808   8,440  3 .7% 

Operating Expenditures  
Instruction and Departmental  68,114   64,508   3,606  5 .6% 
library  5,798   6,632   (834)  (12 .6%)
Student Services  10,789   11,322   (533)  (4 .7%)
Student Financial Aid  46,568   41,210   5,358  13 .0% 
General Administration  10,975   15,518   (4,543)  (29 .3%)
General Institutional  22,986   24,441   (1,455)  (6 .0%)
Maintenance and operations  14,104   15,970   (1,866)  (11 .7%)
Debt Service   6,831   7,163   (332)  (4 .6%)
Major Maintenance, Capital expenditures, and Reserves  6,680   5,280   1,400  26 .5% 
 total educational and General expenditures  192,845   192,044   801   .4% 

Sponsored Research   7,015   6,237   778  12 .5% 
other programs  3,339   4,196   (857)  (20 .4%)
Auxiliary enterprises  25,120   24,326   794  3 .3% 
 total expenditures  228,319   226,803   1,516   .7% 

operating surplus before reserves  6,929   5   6,924  138480 .0% 

Addition to reserves  6,900  —  6,900  

operating surplus after reserves  $29   $5   $24  480 .0%

2010 2009
Increase

(Decrease) %
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sChedule B     ten-year financial summary 2001–2010

  2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 nominal % real %

Financial Statement (in $000s)
total Revenues 
 tuition and Fees $55,197  $57,491  $59,828  $62,928  $66,989  $71,431  $79,298  $83,447  $86,543  $90,400  5 .4%  3 .0% 
 Investment Return  (87,307) (51,431) 35,449  152,797  131,721  175,886  312,636  12,487  (291,066) 116,294  (257 .3%) (259 .7%)
 private Gifts, Grants, Bequests and Contracts 62,234  49,355  52,261  63,101  105,136  47,336  58,547  41,631  43,396  35,783  (3 .5%) (5 .9%)
 Federal Grants and Contracts - Restricted 5,251  6,225  7,448  5,608  4,567  4,560  5,121  4,983  4,800  6,415  4 .7%  2 .3% 
 Sales and Services of Auxiliary enterprises 24,120  24,059  24,493  24,224  25,779  27,428  29,382  30,100  30,132  31,282  3 .1%   .7% 
 Interest Income  2,910  1,253  747  713  713  1,598  2,402  2,207  526  120  (10 .2%) (12 .6%)
 other 2,352  4,155  1,823  3,434  3,461  3,505  3,665  7,483  3,533  3,603  18 .1%  15 .7% 
 total Revenues and other Additions $64,757  $91,107  $182,049  $312,805  $338,366  $331,744  $491,051  $182,338  ($122,136) $283,897  (38 .4%) (40 .8%)

total expenditures 
 Instruction and Departmental $40,074  $42,104  43,650  47,746  51,035  54,663  60,474  64,458  63,789  66,622  5 .6%  3 .2% 
 library 5,195  5,574  5,602  5,556  5,909  5,818  6,239  6,473  6,576  5,798  2 .0%  ( .4%)
 Student Services 8,516  9,876  10,056  9,917  10,396  10,616  10,872  11,706  11,297  10,796  3 .7%  1 .3% 
 Maintenance and operations 18,291  15,635  14,312  13,452  14,896  20,954  24,985  19,118  18,178  17,218  3 .6%  1 .2% 
 provision for Depreciation  8,745  8,718  9,429  9,894  10,497  12,374  12,419  13,527  13,611  14,304  5 .4%  3 .0% 
 Interest on Indebtedness 5,077  4,237  4,712  6,069  4,930  5,442  5,588  4,844  3,580  2,788  (4 .6%) (7 .0%)
 General Administration 7,626  8,328  9,737  9,412  9,128  8,247  10,521  8,121  12,315  6,625  1 .2%  (1 .2%)
 General Institutional 21,136  21,137  20,117  19,676  19,472  19,942  22,236  22,807  23,099  22,390  2 .1%  ( .3%)
 Student Financial Aid 19,189  20,878  23,479  26,511  29,649  31,590  34,736  36,316  41,237  45,119  9 .5%  7 .1% 
 Sponsored Research and other programs 10,138  12,681  12,115  12,850  11,079  10,138  10,682  10,672  10,433  10,353   .9%  (1 .5%)
 Auxiliary enterprise expenditures 23,364  22,583  22,233  21,617  22,278  23,632  25,052  26,020  24,291  25,109  1 .7%  ( .7%)
 other  —  —  —  —  —  15,857  918  1,841  24,052  11,052  
 total expenditures and other Deductions $167,351  $171,751  $175,442  $182,700  $189,269  $219,273  $224,722  $225,903  $252,458  $238,174  4 .4%  2 .0% 

excess of Revenues over expenditures ($102,594) ($80,644) $6,607  $130,105  $149,097  $112,471  $266,329  ($43,565) ($374,594) $45,723  

excess of Revenues over expenditures 
 as a percent of expenditures -61 .3% -47 .0% 3 .8% 71 .2% 78 .8% 51 .3% 118 .5% -19 .3% -148 .4% 19 .2% 

endowment total Return used to  
 Support Current operations $53,520  $54,931  $54,333  $59,639  $65,219  $69,159  $74,496  $76,584  $81,199  $86,612  4 .9% * 

endowment end-of-Year Market Value $1,136,426  $1,032,465  $1,043,937  $1,180,405  $1,275,767  $1,412,604  $1,672,473  $1,629,447  $1,287,284  $1,330,045  1 .6% * 

Average endowment Return used to Support  
 Current operations as a percent of: 
  one Year—Beginning and ending Market Value 4 .2% 5 .0% 5 .3% 5 .1% 5 .1% 5 .0% 4 .7% 4 .6% 5 .4% 6 .4% 
  Three Year—Average of Three Years  4 .4% 4 .5% 4 .8% 5 .1% 5 .2% 5 .1% 4 .9% 4 .7% 4 .9% 5 .5% 

Other Financial Information
tuition and Fees per Student 
 Comprehensive Fee $31,654  $33,394  $34,944  $36,513  $38,998  $41,030  $43,288  $45,820  $47,976  $49,794  5 .0%  2 .6% 
 tuition $23,718  $25,022  $26,138  $27,314  $29,176  $30,696  $32,384  $34,770  $36,404  $37,826  5 .2%  2 .8% 

enrollment (Average Fte) 2,212  2,195  2,191  2,176  2,169  2,193  2,196  2,234  2,212  2,200  ( .2%) 

educational and General Costs per Student $60,510  $62,181  $64,397  $68,122  $71,882  $77,358  $85,642  $83,872  $87,560  $87,118  4 .7%  2 .3% 

tuition as a percent of educational            
 and General expenses 39 .2% 40 .2% 40 .6% 40 .1% 40 .6% 39 .7% 37 .8% 41 .5% 41 .6% 43 .4%  .6%   (1 .8%)

endowment per Student $513,755  $470,371  $476,466  $542,466  $588,182  $644,142  $761,600  $729,385  $581,955  $604,566  1 .4%   (1 .0%)
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  2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 nominal % real %

Financial Statement (in $000s)
total Revenues 
 tuition and Fees $55,197  $57,491  $59,828  $62,928  $66,989  $71,431  $79,298  $83,447  $86,543  $90,400  5 .4%  3 .0% 
 Investment Return  (87,307) (51,431) 35,449  152,797  131,721  175,886  312,636  12,487  (291,066) 116,294  (257 .3%) (259 .7%)
 private Gifts, Grants, Bequests and Contracts 62,234  49,355  52,261  63,101  105,136  47,336  58,547  41,631  43,396  35,783  (3 .5%) (5 .9%)
 Federal Grants and Contracts - Restricted 5,251  6,225  7,448  5,608  4,567  4,560  5,121  4,983  4,800  6,415  4 .7%  2 .3% 
 Sales and Services of Auxiliary enterprises 24,120  24,059  24,493  24,224  25,779  27,428  29,382  30,100  30,132  31,282  3 .1%   .7% 
 Interest Income  2,910  1,253  747  713  713  1,598  2,402  2,207  526  120  (10 .2%) (12 .6%)
 other 2,352  4,155  1,823  3,434  3,461  3,505  3,665  7,483  3,533  3,603  18 .1%  15 .7% 
 total Revenues and other Additions $64,757  $91,107  $182,049  $312,805  $338,366  $331,744  $491,051  $182,338  ($122,136) $283,897  (38 .4%) (40 .8%)

total expenditures 
 Instruction and Departmental $40,074  $42,104  43,650  47,746  51,035  54,663  60,474  64,458  63,789  66,622  5 .6%  3 .2% 
 library 5,195  5,574  5,602  5,556  5,909  5,818  6,239  6,473  6,576  5,798  2 .0%  ( .4%)
 Student Services 8,516  9,876  10,056  9,917  10,396  10,616  10,872  11,706  11,297  10,796  3 .7%  1 .3% 
 Maintenance and operations 18,291  15,635  14,312  13,452  14,896  20,954  24,985  19,118  18,178  17,218  3 .6%  1 .2% 
 provision for Depreciation  8,745  8,718  9,429  9,894  10,497  12,374  12,419  13,527  13,611  14,304  5 .4%  3 .0% 
 Interest on Indebtedness 5,077  4,237  4,712  6,069  4,930  5,442  5,588  4,844  3,580  2,788  (4 .6%) (7 .0%)
 General Administration 7,626  8,328  9,737  9,412  9,128  8,247  10,521  8,121  12,315  6,625  1 .2%  (1 .2%)
 General Institutional 21,136  21,137  20,117  19,676  19,472  19,942  22,236  22,807  23,099  22,390  2 .1%  ( .3%)
 Student Financial Aid 19,189  20,878  23,479  26,511  29,649  31,590  34,736  36,316  41,237  45,119  9 .5%  7 .1% 
 Sponsored Research and other programs 10,138  12,681  12,115  12,850  11,079  10,138  10,682  10,672  10,433  10,353   .9%  (1 .5%)
 Auxiliary enterprise expenditures 23,364  22,583  22,233  21,617  22,278  23,632  25,052  26,020  24,291  25,109  1 .7%  ( .7%)
 other  —  —  —  —  —  15,857  918  1,841  24,052  11,052  
 total expenditures and other Deductions $167,351  $171,751  $175,442  $182,700  $189,269  $219,273  $224,722  $225,903  $252,458  $238,174  4 .4%  2 .0% 

excess of Revenues over expenditures ($102,594) ($80,644) $6,607  $130,105  $149,097  $112,471  $266,329  ($43,565) ($374,594) $45,723  

excess of Revenues over expenditures 
 as a percent of expenditures -61 .3% -47 .0% 3 .8% 71 .2% 78 .8% 51 .3% 118 .5% -19 .3% -148 .4% 19 .2% 

endowment total Return used to  
 Support Current operations $53,520  $54,931  $54,333  $59,639  $65,219  $69,159  $74,496  $76,584  $81,199  $86,612  4 .9% * 

endowment end-of-Year Market Value $1,136,426  $1,032,465  $1,043,937  $1,180,405  $1,275,767  $1,412,604  $1,672,473  $1,629,447  $1,287,284  $1,330,045  1 .6% * 

Average endowment Return used to Support  
 Current operations as a percent of: 
  one Year—Beginning and ending Market Value 4 .2% 5 .0% 5 .3% 5 .1% 5 .1% 5 .0% 4 .7% 4 .6% 5 .4% 6 .4% 
  Three Year—Average of Three Years  4 .4% 4 .5% 4 .8% 5 .1% 5 .2% 5 .1% 4 .9% 4 .7% 4 .9% 5 .5% 

Other Financial Information
tuition and Fees per Student 
 Comprehensive Fee $31,654  $33,394  $34,944  $36,513  $38,998  $41,030  $43,288  $45,820  $47,976  $49,794  5 .0%  2 .6% 
 tuition $23,718  $25,022  $26,138  $27,314  $29,176  $30,696  $32,384  $34,770  $36,404  $37,826  5 .2%  2 .8% 

enrollment (Average Fte) 2,212  2,195  2,191  2,176  2,169  2,193  2,196  2,234  2,212  2,200  ( .2%) 

educational and General Costs per Student $60,510  $62,181  $64,397  $68,122  $71,882  $77,358  $85,642  $83,872  $87,560  $87,118  4 .7%  2 .3% 

tuition as a percent of educational            
 and General expenses 39 .2% 40 .2% 40 .6% 40 .1% 40 .6% 39 .7% 37 .8% 41 .5% 41 .6% 43 .4%  .6%   (1 .8%)

endowment per Student $513,755  $470,371  $476,466  $542,466  $588,182  $644,142  $761,600  $729,385  $581,955  $604,566  1 .4%   (1 .0%)

average annual percent 
change since june 30, 2001

* compound growth
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  2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Faculty / Student FTE Headcount
Student enrollment (Average Fte) 2,193  2,196  2,234  2,212  2,200 
Faculty teaching Strength (Fte) 231  236  241  248  246 
Student/Faculty Ratio 9 .49  9 .31  9 .27  8 .92  8 .94 
 
Enrollment 
number of First-Year Student Applications 4,347  3,974  4,017  4,001  4,156 
First-Year Students Admitted as a % of Applicants 33 .7% 36 .1% 35 .7% 36 .0% 35 .2%
First-Year Students enrolled as a % of Applicants 13 .9% 14 .7% 14 .7% 14 .9% 14 .2%
First-Year Students enrolled as a % of Students Admitted 41 .4% 40 .9% 41 .1% 41 .3% 40 .3%
 
Financial Aid 
percent of Students Receiving Financial Aid Grant Assistance 56 .0% 53 .0% 52 .0% 54 .0% 55 .0%
Average Financial Aid Grant as % of Comprehensive Fee 59 .6% 61 .4% 61 .9% 65 .7% 67 .3%
Student Aid expense as % of educational and General expense 18 .6% 18 .5% 19 .4% 19 .4% 23 .5%
 
educational and General Cost per Student $77,358  $85,642  $83,872  $87,560  $87,118 
tuition as % of educational and General expense 39 .7% 37 .8% 41 .5% 41 .6% 43 .4%
 
Development ($000s) 
total Development Fund-Raising $55,912  $64,179  $37,765  $38,242  $33,117 
total Alumnae Giving Including Bequests $40,752  $46,812  $28,884  $29,714  $25,581 
number of Alumnae Donors 15,113  15,160  14,561  13,527  14,177 
percent of Alumnae Contributing 49 .7% 49 .6% 47 .4% 43 .6% 45 .0%
 
total unrestricted Gifts $8,761  $8,421  $8,848  $8,268  $8,847 
total planned Gifts $2,411  $1,389  $2,943  $3,389  $1,219 
total Bequests $14,305  $13,017  $4,210  $6,349  $7,555 
 
unrestricted Gifts and Bequests as % of  
 educational and General expense 5 .2% 4 .5% 4 .4% 5 .6% 5 .6%
 
Endowment 
endowment Market Value ($000s) $1,412,604  $1,672,473  $1,629,447  $1,287,284  $1,330,045 
endowment per Student $644,142  $761,600  $729,385  $581,955  $604,566 
endowment Income as % of 
 educational and General expense 40 .8% 39 .6% 40 .9% 41 .9% 45 .2%
 
Other 
Gross Square Feet of Buildings  2,643,000  2,600,000  2,598,000  2,594,031  2,587,761 
library Collections in Volumes 1,594,395  1,604,787  1,600,258  1,458,179  1,702,321

sChedule C     key statistics
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sChedule d     total sources of student financial aid Grant and work assistance (in $000s)

  2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Unrestricted Revenue         
 General College Revenues  $4,822   $5,890   $7,826   $9,249   $13,049 

 total unrestricted Revenue  4,822   5,890   7,826   9,249   13,049 

Restricted Revenue 
Restricted endowment 
 Income  20,178   21,922   22,823   24,292   25,920 
 Income—Special Supplement  2,000   2,000   2,000   2,000   2,000 
 
Federal Government 
 pell Grants  945   1,110   1,203   1,402   2,018 
 Supplemental educational opportunity Grants  388   358   339   348   337 
 College Work Study program— 
     Federal Government Share  331   322   333   342   383 

 total Government Grants  1,664   1,790   1,875   2,092   2,738 
 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts  239   268   268   238   143 
 
Restricted Gifts  2,625   3,678   3,478   3,339   2,718 

 total Restricted Revenue  26,706   29,658   30,444   31,961   33,519 
  
total unrestricted and Restricted Revenues  $31,528   $35,548   $38,270   $41,210   $46,568 
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  Market Value % of Total

Investments Pooled   
liquid Funds (net of payables and Receivables) $58,452  4 .47% 

Fixed Income  
 u .S . Bonds 168,057  12 .86%
 non-u .S . Bonds 23,056  1 .77%

 total Fixed Income 191,113  14 .63% 

Common Stocks   
 u .S . Stocks 247,211  18 .92%
 non-u .S . Stocks  240,743  18 .42%

 total Common Stocks 487,954  37 .34% 

Alternative Assets   
 Venture Capital 127,705  9 .77%
 Buyout Funds 68,048  5 .21%
 Distressed securities 57,080  4 .37%
 Real estate 87,831  6 .72%
 oil and Gas 73,988  5 .66%
 timberland 40,027  3 .06%
 Semi Marketable 113,710  8 .70%
 Miscellaneous other 888  0 .07%  

 total Alternative Assets 569,277  43 .56% 

total General pooled Investments 1,306,796  100 .00% 
Faculty Mortgages 23,249   

total General pooled Investments and Faculty Mortgages 1,330,045    

Investments Not Pooled 199   
total endowment and Similar Funds 1,330,244   

Planned Giving    
Separate pooled Funds 13,981  
unitrusts and Funds not pooled  50,690  

total planned Giving Funds 64,671   

 Grand total $1,394,915  

sChedule e investment of endowment and similar funds and planned Giving   
 funds As of June 30, 2010 (in $000s)
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sChedule F      General endowment pool annual total return since inception

      
Year Market Value Ending Unit   Total Return 
Ended (in $000s) Value Distribution Yield % Appreciation %  Total %
   $100 .00    
1970  $92,600  107 .13  $5 .50  5 .13  7 .13  12 .26 
1971  121,050  138 .68  5 .70  4 .11  29 .46  33 .57 
1972  136,273  154 .80  5 .90  3 .81  11 .63  15 .44 
1973  126,928  139 .30  6 .00  4 .31  (10 .01) (5 .70)
1974  109,672  116 .43  7 .30  6 .27  (16 .42) (10 .15)
1975  111,340  116 .82  7 .05  6 .03  0 .33  6 .36 
1976  115,922  119 .77  7 .00  5 .84  2 .52  8 .36 
1977  119,152  122 .86  7 .30  5 .94  2 .58  8 .52 
1978  111,852  116 .54  7 .68  6 .59  (6 .15) 0 .44 
1979  119,151  119 .70  8 .05  6 .73  2 .72  9 .45 
1980  133,168  119 .32  9 .30  7 .79  (0 .03) 7 .76 
1981  134,871  121 .64  9 .11  7 .49  2 .71  10 .20 
1982  127,842  110 .90  10 .72  9 .67  (8 .77) 0 .90 
1983  167,556  135 .78  10 .40  7 .66  21 .94  29 .60 
1984  156,258  123 .60  9 .00  7 .28  (9 .69) (2 .41)
1985  201,793  149 .44  9 .09  6 .36  21 .62  27 .98 
1986  260,481  188 .93  8 .41  5 .50  26 .90  32 .40 
1987  294,574  207 .66  8 .90  4 .34  10 .38  14 .72 
1988  290,270  198 .53  10 .25  5 .20  (4 .30) 0 .90 
1989  319,235  211 .06  11 .10  5 .50  7 .28  12 .78 
1990  352,537  222 .70  11 .30  5 .20  6 .00  11 .20 
1991  371,464  231 .81  11 .30  5 .15  4 .08  9 .23 
1992  409,082  252 .95  11 .02  4 .50  10 .00  14 .50 
1993  475,797  281 .83  11 .37  4 .00  11 .50  15 .50 
1994  475,961  278 .97  14 .00  3 .50  0 .50  4 .00 
1995  520,108  305 .01  16 .15  3 .20  12 .00  15 .20 
1996  595,950  336 .88  17 .02  3 .21  15 .03  18 .24 
1997  677,932  371 .67  19 .60  2 .89  14 .28  17 .17 
1998  780,203  410 .41  21 .00  3 .24  11 .98  15 .22 
1999  887,036  446 .73  22 .00  3 .91  11 .05  14 .96 
2000  1,253,008  610 .15  23 .50  4 .41  38 .44  42 .85 
2001  1,135,925  543 .88  24 .75  3 .72  (10 .34) (6 .62)
2002  1,031,991  484 .59  26 .04  3 .81  (9 .00) (5 .19)
2003  1,043,476  479 .33  26 .88  4 .12  0 .73  4 .85 
2004  1,179,988  521 .95  26 .16  5 .74  9 .44  15 .18 
2005  1,275,529  550 .55  27 .88  5 .52  5 .94  11 .46 
2006  1,412,410  595 .46  28 .96  5 .84  8 .13  13 .97 
2007* 1,656,565  691 .71  30 .74  8 .12  14 .58  22 .70 
2008  1,611,318  668 .81  31 .55  7 .85  (6 .63) 1 .22 
2009  1,266,437  523 .84  33 .18  2 .81  (19 .78) (16 .97)
2010  1,306,796  535 .74  35 .08  4 .62  4 .72  9 .34

*  For reporting purposes, 
beginning in 2007, market 
value and all return figures are 
reported based on the general 
investment pool excluding 
faculty mortgages .
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to the Board of trustees of Wellesley College:

In our opinion, the accompanying statements of financial position and the related statements of activities and cash flows 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Wellesley College (the “College”) at June 30, 2010 and 2009, 
and the changes in its net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the united States of America . These financial statements are the responsibility of the College’s management . our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits . We conducted our audits of these 
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the united States of America . Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement . An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation . We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion .

october 30, 2010

RePoRt oF indePendent AuditoRs
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  2010 2009

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents  $29,425   $23,929 
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted  19,811  26,817
Accounts receivable, net  1,512  372
loans receivable, net  9,113  9,280
Contributions receivable, net  45,677  47,724
Grants receivable  1,338  1,226 
prepaid, inventory and other assets  2,708  4,930
Investments   1,330,244  1,287,284 
planned giving investments  64,671  63,085 
Collateral received for securities lending  3,743   54,233
land, buildings and equipment, net  302,449   292,180  

 total assets  $1,810,691   $1,811,060
  
Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $37,482   $35,097 
Student deposits and deferred revenues  3,519   2,678 
Advances under grants and contracts  1,792   2,390
Annuities and unitrusts payable  37,585   37,556  
Asset retirement obligations  18,529   17,474 
Accrued pension liability  19,368   15,866 
liability under securities lending transactions  3,743   54,233
Bonds and notes payable  149,533   152,349
Government loan advances  4,569   4,569  

 total liabilities  276,120   322,212
 
Net Assets 
unrestricted  517,193   506,452 
temporarily restricted  600,601   573,376  
permanently restricted  416,777   409,020 

 total net assets  1,534,571   1,488,848  

 total liabilities and net assets  $1,810,691   $1,811,060

stAtements oF FinAnCiAl Position      
June 30, 2010 and 2009 (in $000s)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements .
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stAtement oF ACtiVities      
For the year ended June 30, 2010 (in $000s)

  Temporarily Permanently 2010
 Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Operating Revenues 
tuition and Fees  $90,400   $—   $—   $90,400 
 less financial aid 
  Donor sponsored  (28,940) — —  (28,940)
  Institutionally sponsored  (13,729) — —  (13,729)
 net tuition and fees  47,731  — —  47,731 

Auxiliary operations  31,282  — —  31,282 
Government grants   4,838  — —  4,838 
private gifts and grants  17,182   3,623  —  20,805 
Investment return designated for operations  41,855   44,757  —  86,612 
other   3,725  — —  3,725 
net assets released from restrictions  45,460   (45,460) — —

 total operating revenues  192,073   2,920  —  194,993 

Operating Expenses
Instruction and departmental research  81,435  — —  81,435 
Sponsored research and other programs  10,353  — —  10,353 
library  9,191  — —  9,191 
Student services  13,534  — —  13,534 
General administration  12,078  — —  12,078 
General institutional  24,009  — —  24,009 
Auxiliary operations  35,408  — —  35,408 

 total operating expenses  186,008  — —  186,008 

Nonoperating Activities
Investment return, net of spending allocation  1,680   28,749   710   31,139 
Matured planned giving agreements  1,401   (3,040)  1,639  —
Gifts and pledges  3,531   4,559   5,408   13,498 
pension related changes other than net periodic pension cost  (3,501) — —  (3,501)
net realized/unrealized loss on interest swap  (4,398) — —  (4,398)
net assets released from restrictions  5,963   (5,963) — —

 total nonoperating revenues  4,676   24,305   7,757   36,738 
 net change in net assets  10,741   27,225   7,757   45,723 
 net assets at beginning of year  506,452   573,376   409,020   1,488,848 

 net assets at end of year  $517,193   $600,601   $416,777   $1,534,571

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements .
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stAtement oF ACtiVities      
For the year ended June 30, 2009 (in $000s)

  Temporarily Permanently 2009
 Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Operating Revenues 
 tuition and Fees  $86,543   $—   $—   $86,543 
 less financial aid 
  Donor sponsored  (28,854) — —  (28,854)
  Institutionally sponsored  (10,959) — —  (10,959)
 net tuition and fees  46,730  — —  46,730 

Auxiliary operations  30,132  — —  30,132 
Government grants   3,657  — —  3,657 
private gifts and grants  18,588   3,712  —  22,300 
Investment return designated for operations  39,088   42,111  —  81,199 
other   4,060  — —  4,060 
net assets released from restrictions  44,871   (44,871) — —

 total operating revenues  187,126   952  —  188,078 

Operating Expenses 
Instruction and departmental research  79,149  — —  79,149 
Sponsored research and other programs  10,433  — —  10,433 
library  10,089  — —  10,089 
Student services  14,131  — —  14,131 
General administration  20,313  — —  20,313 
General institutional  24,776  — —  24,776 
Auxiliary operations  34,954  — —  34,954 

 total operating expenses  193,845  — —  193,845 

Nonoperating Activities 
 Investment return, net of spending allocation  (127,591)  (244,087)  800   (370,878)
 Matured planned giving agreements  1,830   (2,567)  737  —
 Gifts and pledges  2,991   11,254   6,441   20,686 
 pension related changes other than net periodic pension cost  (12,028) — —  (12,028)
 net realized/unrealized loss on interest swap  (5,521) — —  (5,521)
 net assets released from restrictions  4,411   (4,411) — —

 total nonoperating revenues  (135,908)  (239,811)  7,978   (367,741)
 net change in net assets  (142,627)  (238,859)  7,978   (373,508)
 net assets at beginning of year  649,079   812,235   401,042   1,862,356 

 net assets at end of year  $506,452   $573,376   $409,020   $1,488,848

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements .
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stAtements oF CAsh FloWs      
For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 (in $000s)

  2010 2009

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Change in net assets  $45,723   $(373,508)
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used by operating activities: 
 Depreciation and amortization  14,304   13,587 
 Contributions restricted for investments  (9,716)  (13,992)
 Receipt of contributed securities  (2,043)  (1,442)
 Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments  (120,524)  291,054 
 Change in discount and allowance for doubtful accounts  (1,727)  (1,392)
 pension related changes other than net periodic pension cost 3,501  12,028 
 unrealized loss on interest swap  2,640   4,213 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
 Accounts receivable, net  (1,140)  315 
 Contributions receivable, net  3,807   703 
 Grants receivable  (112)  (50)
 prepaid, inventory and other assets  2,222   988 
 Accounts payable and accrued expenses  3,783   7,517 
 Student deposits and deferred revenue  841   (986)
 Advances under grants and contracts  (598)  224 
 Annuities and unitrusts payable  29   (1,024)
net cash used in operating activities  (59,010)  (61,765)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
purchase of plant and equipment  (27,579)  (20,931)
proceeds from student loans collections  1,199   976 
Student loans issued  (1,065)  (1,480)
Decrease in restricted cash for construction funds  7,014   1,599 
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash for plant and equipment  (8)  11,567 
purchases of investments  (278,426) (565,665)
proceeds from sales and maturities of investments  356,447  631,663 
net cash provided by investing activities  57,582 57,729

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
proceeds from contributions for: 
 Investment in endowment  8,090   7,207 
 Investment in planned giving  891   2,406 
 plant and equipment  735   4,379 
Bond and notes payable proceeds received, net — —
payments on bonds and notes payable  (2,792)  (4,565)
net cash provided by financing activities  6,924  9,427

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  5,496  5,391
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  23,929  18,538
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  $29,425  $23,929

Contributed securities  $2,043   $1,442 
Cash paid for interest  $4,541   $4,899 
Capital additions included in accounts payable and accrued expenses  $1,145   $3,662 
net change in securities lending  $(50,490)  $(49,013)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements .
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation
The financial statements of Wellesley College (the 
“College”) have been prepared in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the  
united States of America using the accrual basis  
of accounting .

Resources are reported for accounting purposes in 
separate classes of net assets based on the existence 
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions . In the 
accompanying financial statements, net assets that 
have similar characteristics have been combined into 
similar categories as follows:

Unrestricted—net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations . These include all revenues, 
expenses, gains and losses that are not changes in 
permanently or temporarily restricted net assets . 
This category includes realized and unrealized gains 
on unrestricted endowment . unrestricted net assets 
may be designated for specific purposes by action of 
the Board of trustees or may otherwise be limited 
by contractual agreements with outside parties . 
unrestricted net assets generally result from revenues 
derived from providing services, receiving unrestricted 
contributions, unrealized and realized gains and  
losses on unrestricted endowment, and receiving 
dividends and interest from investing in income 
producing assets, less expenses incurred in providing 
services, raising contributions, and performing 
administrative functions .

Temporarily restricted—net assets that are subject to 
donor-imposed stipulations that can be fulfilled by 
actions of the College pursuant to those stipulations 
or that expire by the passage of time . This category 
includes realized and unrealized gains and losses on 
permanent endowment . temporarily restricted net 
assets generally result from contributions and other 

inflows of assets whose use by the organization is 
limited by donor-imposed stipulations or by law  
that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled 
and removed by actions of the College pursuant to 
those stipulations .

Permanently restricted—net assets that are subject to 
donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained 
permanently by the College . Generally, the donors of 
these assets permit the College to use all or part of the 
investment return on these assets . Such assets primarily 
include the College’s permanent endowment funds . 
permanently restricted net assets generally represent 
the historical cost (market value at date of gift) of 
contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by 
the College is limited by donor-imposed stipulations 
that neither expire by the passage of time nor can be 
fulfilled or otherwise removed by the College .

expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted 
net assets . expirations of donor-imposed stipulations 
that simultaneously increase one class of net assets 
and decrease another are reported as reclassifications 
between the applicable classes of net assets .

Contributions restricted for the acquisition of land, 
buildings and equipment are reported as temporarily 
restricted revenues . These contributions are reclassified 
to unrestricted net assets upon acquisition of the assets 
or placed in service dates if the asset is constructed .

nonoperating activities reflect transactions of a 
long-term investment or capital nature including 
contributions to be invested by the College to 
generate a return that will support future operations, 
contributions to be received in the future, 
contributions to be used for facilities and equipment, 
and investment return beyond what the College 
has appropriated for current operational support 
in accordance with the College’s investment return 

Wellesley College  

notes to the FinAnCiAl stAtements
June 30, 2010 and 2009
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spending guidelines . nonoperating activities also 
include net realized and unrealized gains and losses 
on the interest rate swap and pension related changes 
other than net periodic pension costs .

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term, highly 
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or 
less at the time of purchase . Cash and cash equivalents 
representing endowment assets and planned giving 
assets are included in endowment investments and 
planned giving investments, respectively . Restricted 
cash represents amounts for construction held by 
trustees in association with the Massachusetts Health 
and education Facilities Authority Series I bond issue 
and amounts restricted by a donor for the Science 
Center and power plant .

(c) Investments
Investments in marketable securities are carried 
at fair market value as established by the major 
securities markets . purchases and sales of investments 
are recorded on the trade date of the transaction . 
Realized gains and losses arising from the sales of 
investments are recorded based upon the average cost 
of investments sold . Investment income is recorded on 
the accrual basis . The investment in faculty mortgages 
is stated at unpaid principal balances .

Venture capital and buyout limited partnerships 
include investments in both publicly and privately 
owned securities . The fair values of private investments 
are determined by the College and based on estimates 
and assumptions of the general partners or partnership 
valuation committees in the absence of readily 
determinable public market values . These values are 
audited annually by other auditors, most typically 
based on calendar year end information . The limited 
partnership valuations consider variables such as the 
financial performance of the investments, recent sales 
prices of similar investments and other pertinent 
information . The estimated values as determined by 
the general partners and investment managers may 
differ significantly from the values that would have 
been used had a ready market for the investments 
existed and the differences could be materially higher 
or lower .

Derivative investments in the College’s portfolio may 
include currency forward contracts, currency and 
interest rate swaps, call and put options, debt futures 
contracts and other vehicles that may be appropriate 
in certain circumstances as permitted within the 
managers’ investment guidelines . The College’s external 
managers use investments in derivative securities 
predominantly to reduce interest rate risk and risk in 
the foreign fixed income market .

The College’s split-interest agreements with donors 
consist of irrevocable charitable gift annuities, pooled 
life income funds and charitable remainder unitrusts 
and annuities . unitrusts, in which the College has 
a remainder interest, but that are held in trust and 
administered by outside agents, have been recorded 
as gifts that are temporarily restricted . unitrusts, in 
which the College has a remainder interest, and which 
are managed by the College, periodically pay income 
earned on the assets to designated beneficiaries . The 
College adjusts unitrusts for both the estimated return 
on the invested assets and the contractual payment 
obligations during the expected term of the agreement . 
For planned giving contracts, the contributed assets 
are included at fair value within planned giving 
investments on the Statement of Financial position . 
Contribution revenues are recognized as of the date 
the donated assets are transferred to the College and 
liabilities are recorded for the present value of the 
estimated future payments to the donors or other 
beneficiaries . The liabilities are adjusted during the 
term of the planned giving contracts consistent 
with changes in the value of the assets and actuarial 
assumptions .

net gains on permanently restricted gifts are classified 
as temporarily restricted until appropriated for 
spending by the College in accordance with the 
Massachusetts Management of Institutional Funds 
Act, as updated in 2009 . Future utilization of gains is 
dependent on market performance . 

Deficiencies of $5,281,000 and $6,587,000 for donor-
restricted endowment funds, resulting from declines in 
market value, have been offset by an allocation from 
unrestricted net assets to temporarily restricted net 
assets for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively . As the market value of the portfolio 
increases, the deficiency will reverse .
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(d) Endowment Investment Return Spending Policy
The College has adopted endowment investment and 
spending policies that attempt to provide a predictable 
stream of funding to programs supported by its 
endowment while seeking to maintain the purchasing 
power of endowment assets .  The College’s investment 
strategy is based on a long-term policy portfolio 
that serves as a guide for asset allocation . The policy 
portfolio was established with the goal of balancing 
long-term returns and risks by increasing portfolio 
diversification through the allocation of assets to less 
efficient asset classes . The return objective for the 
endowment assets, measured over a full market cycle, 
is to maximize the return against a blended index, 
based on the endowment’s target allocation applied 
to the appropriate individual benchmarks .   The 
College uses a “total return” approach to managing 
endowment assets in which investment returns are 
achieved through both capital appreciation (realized 
and unrealized gains) and current yield (interest and 
dividends) . Funds are invested to maximize total 
return consistent with prudent risk without regard to 
the mix of current investment income and realized and 
unrealized gains or losses .

The College’s endowment distribution policy 
determines a payout rate that is based on a 
methodology that uses a combination of prior year’s 
spending and endowment value with a general rule 
that the total amount spent needs to be within a 
4 .5% to 6% range of the prior year market value 
of the endowment, based on a 3 year average . The 
sources of the payout are endowment earned income 
(interest and dividends), both current and previously 
reinvested income and a portion of realized gains . 
Any income earned in excess of the spending limit is 
reinvested . Funds may be withdrawn from investment 
return earned in prior years if income is less than the 
spending limit . The spending policy is designed to 
insulate investment policy from budgetary pressures, 
and to insulate program spending from fluctuations in 
capital markets .

(e) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, 
first-out method) or market and are included in 
prepaid, inventory and other assets on the Statement 
of Financial position .

(f ) Accounts Receivable and Student Loans 
Receivable
Accounts receivable include amounts due from 
students, student organizations and other 
miscellaneous receivables . loans to students are carried 
at net realizable value . Accounts receivable for 2010 
and 2009, are reported net of allowances for doubtful 
accounts of $434,000 for both years . loans receivable 
for 2010 and 2009, are reported net of allowances 
for doubtful loans of $752,000 and $719,000, 
respectively . The provisions are intended to provide for 
student accounts and loans that may not be collected .

(g) Grant Revenue
Government grants normally provide for the recovery 
of direct and indirect costs, subject to audit . The 
College recognizes revenue associated with the direct 
costs as the related costs are incurred or expended . 
Recovery of related indirect costs is generally 
recorded at predetermined fixed rates negotiated 
with the government or at other predetermined rates 
determined by the grant provider .

(h) Pledges
The College recognizes the present value of 
unconditional promises to give as revenues in the 
period in which the pledges are made by donors .

(i) Loans Receivable
Determination of the fair value of student loan 
receivables is not practicable as such loans are 
primarily federally sponsored student loans with u .S . 
government mandated interest rates and repayment 
terms subject to significant restrictions as to their 
transfer and disposition .

(j) Land, Buildings, and Equipment
land, buildings, and equipment are recorded 
at cost, or if donated, at fair market value at the 
date of donation . Additions to plant assets are 
capitalized while scheduled maintenance and minor 
renovations are charged to operations . library books 
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are expensed when purchased . Museum collections 
are not capitalized . plant assets are presented net of 
accumulated depreciation . When assets are retired or 
disposed of, the cost and accumulated depreciation  
are removed from the accounts and gains and losses 
from disposal are included in the Statement of 
Activities . Depreciation is computed on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets 
as follows:

(k) Financial Aid
The Statement of Activities reflects financial aid as  
an offset to tuition revenues . The College’s financial 
aid is primarily funded through private gifts, grants 
and endowment income with the remainder, if needed, 
representing unrestricted institutional resources  
for grants .

(l) Auxiliary Operations
Auxiliary operations includes residence and dining 
halls, the nehoiden Golf Club, the Wellesley College 
Club, which operates a private dining and conference 
center, and use of the campus during the summer by 
internal and external groups . Related expenses include 
direct expenses of running these operations as well 
as an allocation for depreciation, debt service and 
physical plant maintenance and operation .

(m) Internal Revenue Code Status
The College has been granted tax-exempt status as a 
non-profit organization under Section 501(c)(3) of  
the Internal Revenue Code .

(n) Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations
The College recognizes the fair value of a liability for 
legal obligations associated with asset retirements in 
the period in which the obligation is incurred . When 
the liability is initially recorded, the cost of the asset 
retirement obligation is capitalized by increasing the 
carrying amount of the related long-lived asset . The 
liability is accreted to its present value each period, 
and the capitalized cost associated with the retirement 
obligation is depreciated over the useful life of the 

related asset . upon settlement of the obligation, 
any difference between the cost to settle the asset 
retirement obligation and the liability recorded is 
recognized as a gain or loss in the Statement  
of Activities .

(o) Interest Rate Swap
The College has entered into an interest rate swap 
agreement on the Massachusetts Health and education 
Facilities Authority, Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, 
Series I in order to convert the variable rate debt 
to fixed rate, thereby economically hedging against 
changes in the cash flow requirements of the College’s 
variable rate debt obligations .

net payments or receipts (difference between variable 
and fixed rate) under the swap agreement along with 
the change in fair value of the swap are recorded in 
nonoperating activities as net realized/unrealized loss 
on interest swap .

(p) Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
united States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period . 
Actual results could differ from those estimates .

(q) New Accounting Pronouncements
The College adopted accounting guidance on 
subsequent events as of June 30, 2010 . This establishes 
general standards of accounting for and disclosure 
of events that occur after the balance sheet date but 
before financial statements are issued and requires 
disclosure of the date through which an entity has 
evaluated subsequent events . Subsequent events have 
been evaluated through october 30, 2010, which is 
the date financial statements were issued . 

The College adopted additional Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) guidance related to 
investments as of June 30, 2010 . This establishes 
enhanced reporting and disclosure on the level of the 
assets included in investments . Further, the guidance 
requires disclosure by investment type related to 

 Years

land improvements 20-40 
Buildings and building improvements 20-40 
equipment 4-12
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investments . Such disclosure includes the nature of 
any restrictions on the investor’s ability to redeem 
the investment at the valuation date as well as any 
unfunded commitments . The College adopted 
additional FASB guidance on enhanced disclosure on 
certain investments as of June 30, 2010 . This provides 
enhanced disclosure on investments for which fair 
value is estimated through the use of net asset value, or 
its equivalent, as a practical expedient .

The College adopted FASB guidance on enhanced 
disclosure of pension assets as of June 30, 2010 . 
The guidance calls for disclosure of how investment 
allocation decisions are made, the valuation techniques 
used to measure the fair value of the investments as 
well as any significant concentration of risk within 
the assets . This disclosure is required for each major 
category of plan asset .

The College adopted FASB guidance related to 
derivative instruments . The College has one such 
instrument . The guidance requires disclosure of 
the objective for using the instrument be disclosed 
including underlying risk and accounting designation . 
Further disclosure is required of the risk that the 
College is intending to manage as well as the fair  
value of the instrument .

2. Contributions Receivable

Contributions receivable, net, is summarized as  
follows at June 30 (in $000s): 

Contributions receivable expected to be collected 
within one year are recorded at their net realizable 
value . Those expected to be collected in future years 
are recorded at the present value of estimated future 
cash flows . The present value of estimated future cash 
flows has been measured at the time of the contribu-
tion using rates indicative of the market and credit 
risk associated with the contribution . Discount rates 
used to calculate the present value of contributions 
receivable ranged from 2 .50% to 5 .10%, and 1 .50% 
to 4 .95% at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively . 

3. Land, Buildings and Equipment

Investment in land, buildings and equipment consists 
of the following at June 30 (in $000s): 

Depreciation expense was $14,319,000 and 
$13,611,000 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 
2009, respectively .

The College recognized $783,000 and $640,000 
of operating expenses relating to the accretion of 
liabilities recorded for the years ended June 30, 2010 
and 2009, respectively . Conditional asset retirement 
obligations of $18,529,000 and $17,474,000 at June 
30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, are included in the 
College’s asset retirement obligation .

Unconditional promises 
expected to be collected in: 2010 2009

less than one year $6,681 $7,732

one year to five years 43,427 47,160

over five years 1,377 400

total  51,485 55,292

less discounts and allowance 
for uncollectible accounts 5,808 7,568

net contributions receivable $45,677 $47,724

  2010 2009

land improvements $46,560 $46,224

Buildings and  
building improvements 394,229 379,807

equipment 12,440 12,385

Construction in progress  26,040 16,992

 479,269 455,408

less accumulated depreciation 176,820 163,228

 $302,449 $292,180
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4. Investments

The book and market values of investments at June 30, 
2010 and 2009  are shown in table 4 on page 33 .

“other assets” include long-term and semi-marketable 
alternative investments . long-term alternative 
assets include private equity funds such as venture 
capital and buyout funds, as well as more traditional 
investments in oil and gas and real estate properties .

The semi-marketable alternative asset investments 
include equity hedge funds, risk arbitrage, distressed 
securities and commodity hedge funds . The College’s 
investments in these strategies use minimal, if any, 
leverage as part of their strategies .

Included in bonds and equities are alternative 
investment vehicles including hedge funds with a 
market value of $238,950,000 and $198,118,000 
and commingled funds with a market value of 
$199,564,000 and $174,532,000 at June 30, 2010 
and 2009, respectively, whose holdings are bonds  
and equities .

The College’s investment return from endowment and 
planned giving for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 
2009 appear in table 5 on page 34 .

The total return consisting of realized and unrealized 
gains and losses and dividends and interest net of 
investment management and custodial fees was 9 .34% 
and -16 .97% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010 
and 2009, respectively .

At June 30, 2010 and 2009 investment securities 
having a fair value of $3,639,000 and $53,046,000, 
respectively, were loaned to various brokerage 
firms through a securities lending agent . The 
loaned securities are returnable on demand and 
are collateralized by cash deposits . The College has 
recorded the fair value of the collateral received of 
$3,743,000 and $54,233,000 and an offsetting 
liability for the return of the collateral on the 
Statement of Financial position at June 30, 2010  
and 2009, respectively .

5. Fair Value Disclosures

The College has established a framework for  
measuring fair value under generally accepted 
accounting principles (“GAAp”) . Fair value is an exit 
price, representing the amount that would be received 
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants . As 
such, fair value is a market-based measurement that 
should be determined based on assumptions that 
market participants would use in pricing an asset or 
liability . As a basis for considering assumptions,  
the College follows a three-tier fair value hierarchy, 
which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair 
value as follows:

•	Level	1—Observable	inputs	such	as	quoted	prices	
in active markets;

•	Level	2—Inputs,	other	than	the	quoted	prices	in	
active markets, that are observable either directly  
or indirectly; and

•	Level	3—Unobservable	inputs	in	which	there	is	
little or no market data .

table 6 on page 34 presents information about the 
College’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value 
on a recurring basis based upon the lowest level of 
significant input to the valuations at June 30, 2010 
and 2009 .

table 7 on page 35 presents the assets and liability 
carried at fair value as of June 30, 2010 and 2009  
that are classified within level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy . The table reflects gains and losses for the 
year, including gains and losses on assets and liabilities 
that were transferred to level 3 during the year, for all 
assets and liabilities categorized as level 3 . Additionally, 
both observable and unobservable inputs may be 
used to determine the fair value of positions that the 
College has classified within the level 3 category . As 
a result, the unrealized gains and losses for assets and 
liabilities within level 3 may include changes in fair 
value that were attributable to both observable and 
unobservable inputs .
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  2010 2010 2009 2009 
  Book Market Book Market 
  Value Value Value Value

endowment Investments
Investments pooled
 Cash and cash equivalents $58,452 $58,452 $77,438 $77,438
 Bonds 130,841 191,113 130,106 167,098
 equities 420,122 487,954 433,202 420,246
 other assets 573,303 569,277 598,160 601,655

 total pooled investments 1,182,718 1,306,796 1,238,906 1,266,437

Faculty mortgages 23,249 23,249 20,645 20,645

 total pooled investments and faculty mortgages 1,205,967 1,330,045 1,259,551 1,287,082

Investments not pooled
 Cash and cash equivalents 199 199 202 202

 total investments not pooled 199 199 202 202

 total endowment investments $1,206,166 $1,330,244 $1,259,753 $1,287,284

planned Giving Investments
Separate pooled funds
 Cash and cash equivalents $168 $168 $143 $143
 Bonds 4,583 4,781 4,054 4,069
 equities 7,739 9,032 8,977 9,314

 total pooled funds 12,490 13,981 13,174 13,526

unitrusts
 Cash and cash equivalents 848 848 514 514
 Bonds 14,025 14,007 15,380 14,900
 equities 30,654 28,365 30,984 25,639
 other assets 887 887 889 889
 Assets held by trustees 6,583 6,583 7,617 7,617

 total funds not pooled 52,997 50,690 55,384 49,559

 total planned Giving investments $65,487 $64,671 $68,558 $63,085

tABle 4: Book And mARket VAlues oF inVestments
 June 30, 2010 and 2009 (in $000s)
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   temporarily permanently  
2010 unrestricted restricted restricted total

Dividends and interest (net of expenses of $9,930) $(180) $(3,303) $710 $(2,773)
net realized and unrealized gains/losses 43,715 76,809 — 120,524 

total return on endowment and planned giving investments 43,535 73,506 710 117,751
Investment return designated for current operations (41,855) (44,757) — (86,612) 

   $1,680 $28,749 $710 $31,139

2009 

Dividends and interest (net of expenses of $8,221) $856 $(281) $800 $1,375
net realized and unrealized gains/losses (89,359) (201,695) — (291,054)

total return on endowment and planned giving investments (88,503) (201,976) 800 (289,679)
Investment return designated for current operations (39,088) (42,111) — (81,199)

  $(127,591) $(244,087) $800 $(370,878)

tABle 5:  inVestment RetuRns FRom endoWment  
 And PlAnned giVing    
 For years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 (in $000s)

 
2010 level 1  level 2  level 3  total

Investments
 equities  $153,409   $314,498   $20,047   $487,954 
 Bonds 64,389  126,724  — 191,113 
 private equity — — 252,834  252,834 
 Real Assets — — 201,847  201,847 
 Semi–marketable — 31,318  82,390  113,708 
 Cash and other Assets 58,651  — 24,137  82,788 
 planned giving investments — — 64,671  64,671 

total assets at fair value  $276,449   $472,540   $645,926   $1,394,915 

Interest rate swap  $—   $—   $6,816   $6,816 

total liabilities at fair value  $—   $—   $6,816   $6,816 

2009 level 1  level 2  level 3  total

Investments
 equities  $135,061   $261,040   $24,145   $420,246 
 Bonds 60,341  106,757  — 167,098 
 private equity — — 275,231  275,231 
 Real Assets — — 197,478  197,478 
 Semi–marketable — — 128,058  128,058 
 Cash and other Assets 77,640  — 21,533  99,173 
 planned giving investments — — 63,085  63,085 
total assets at fair value  $273,042   $367,797   $709,530   $1,350,369 

Interest rate swap  $—   $—   $4,176   $4,176 

total liabilities at fair value  $—   $—   $4,176   $4,176 

tABle 6: Assets And liABilities    
 Measured at Fair Value (in $000s)
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tABle 7: Assets And liABility   
  carried at fair value as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 (in $000s)

  realized and  Transfer Balance 
 Balance Unrealized Purchases in (out) of June 30, 
2010 July 1, 2009 Gains/Losses and Sales Level 3 2010

equities  $24,145  $4,719   $—   $(8,817)  $20,047 
private equity 275,231  24,435  (46,832) — 252,834 
Real Assets 197,478  (13,806) 18,175  — 201,847 
Semi–marketable 128,058  13,969  (28,319) (31,318) 82,390 
Cash and other Assets 21,533  1,023  1,581  — 24,137 
planned giving investments 63,085  (1,158) 2,744  — 64,671 
Interest Rate Swap—Asset/liability  (4,176) (2,640) — — (6,816)
Balance, June 30, 2010  $705,354   $26,542   $(52,651)  $(40,135)  $639,110 

  realized and   Transfer Balance 
 Balance Unrealized Purchases  in (out) of June 30, 
2009 July 1, 2008 Gains/Losses and Sales  Level 3 2009

equities  $38,570   $(9,171)  $(5,254) —  $24,145 
private equity  297,857  (39,566) 16,940  — 275,231 
Real Assets  245,355  (78,857) 30,980  — 197,478 
Semi-marketable  230,255  (36,181) (66,016) — 128,058 
Cash and other Assets  20,214  954  365  — 21,533 
planned giving investments  76,530  (19,324) 5,879  — 63,085 
Interest Rate Swap—Asset/liability  37  (4,213)  —  — (4,176) 
Balance, June 30, 2009  $908,818   $(186,358)  $(17,106) —  $705,354 

tABle 8: inVestments meAsuRed At nAV    
 as of June 30, 2010 (in $000s)

 NAV Unfunded  
Investment in funds Commitments Redemption terms /Restrictions

private equity $252,834 $95,895 Funds are private equity, no ability to redeem .

Real Assets 201,847 86,724 Funds are private equity, no ability to redeem .

equities 334,545 — 86% of nAV redeemable within 90 days . 4% of nAV redeemable within   
   one year . Remaining 10% has multi year redemption .

Bonds 126,724 — 45% of nAV is redeemable within 90 days . Remaining 55% has a multi-  
   year redemption .

Semi-marketable 113,708 — 28% of nAV is redeemable within 90 days . 60% is redeemable within one   
   year . 12% of nAV has been redeemed subsequent to year end and prior to   
   october 31, 2010

total $1,029,658 $182,619 
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 2010 2009

Investments in pooled funds and faculty mortgages, market value (in $000s) $1,330,045 $1,287,082
total number of units 2,482,647 2,457,016
Market value per unit $535 .74 $523 .84
Distribution per unit $35 .08 $33 .18

tABle 9: Pooled Funds    
 As of June 30, 2010 and 2009

tABle 10: ComPonents oF Pooled And nonPooled endoWment   
 Funds At mARket VAlue    
 as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 (in $000s)
   Pooled Nonpooled Total 
  Units  Endowment Endowment Endowment

2010 endowment and similar funds    
  endowment funds 1,568,080   $840,078   $—   $840,078 
 term funds 75,959  40,694  199  40,893 
 Quasi-endowment  838,608  449,273  —  449,273 
 total 2,482,647   $1,330,045   $199   $1,330,244 
    
2009 endowment and similar funds    
 endowment funds 1,553,215   $813,635   $—   $813,635 
 term funds 83,296  43,634  202  43,836 
 Quasi-endowment  820,505  429,813  — 429,813 
 total 2,457,016   $1,287,082   $202   $1,287,284
 

As a result of adopting the new guidance for estimating 
fair value of investments, certain investments have been 
reclassified as level 2 assets based on the year end re-
corded amounts .

The College uses net Asset Value (nAV) or its equiva-
lent to determine the fair value of certain investments, 
which may not have a readily determined fair value . 
These investments also have various redemption  
restrictions and redemption terms . The investments  
are measured at nAV as of June 30, 2010 . (See table  
8 on page 35 .)

Beneficial interests in perpetual trusts and outside trusts 
held by third parties are valued at the present value of 
distributions expected to be received over the term of 
the agreement . Inputs used to value the College’s inter-
est in these trust are considered unobservable and are 
categorized as level 3 .

Interest rate swaps are valued at the present value of the 
series of net cash flows resulting from the exchange of 
fixed-rate payments for floating rate payments over the 
remaining life of the contract from balance sheet date . 
each floating rate payment is calculated based on for-
ward market rates at valuation date for each respective 
payment date . Inputs to determine discount factors and 
forward rates include market prices for reference securi-
ties, yield curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, 
prepayment rates, assumptions for nonperformance 
risk, and correlations of such inputs . Certain inputs  
are unobservable; therefore the fair value is categorized 
as level 3 .

6. Pooled Funds

endowment and similar fund assets are pooled on a 
unit market value basis whenever possible . Funds are 
added to or withdrawn from the pool at the unit mar-
ket value at the beginning of the fiscal quarter in which 
the transaction takes place . (See table 9 above .)
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The components of the pooled and nonpooled 
endowment funds at market value at June 30, 2010 
and 2009 are shown in table 10 on the previous page .

7. Related Parties

The College acts as fiscal agent and investment 
advisor for the Wellesley College Alumnae Association 
and a retired president of the College . endowment 
investments held on their behalf are included in 
the College’s general pool of investments and are 
reflected either as part of the College’s net assets or a 
pension liability . The market value of the assets totaled 
$12,615,000 and $12,056,000 at June 30, 2010 and 
2009, respectively .

Mortgages due from faculty of $23,249,000 and 
$20,645,000 at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, 
are included within investments on the Statement of 
Financial position .

8. Notes and Bonds Payable

Indebtedness at June 30, 2010 and 2009 includes vari-
ous bonds issued through the Massachusetts Health 
and education Facilities Authority (MHeFA) . Interest 
payments on debt totaled $2,787,000 and $3,580,000 
during fiscal years 2010 and 2009, respectively .

During January 2008, the College issued $57,385,000 
in Series I tax-exempt variable rate demand bonds . 
The proceeds will be used for major asset preservation 
and modernization projects and were used to retire 
the Series F bonds, with $30 .0 million outstanding, 

on July 1, 2009, the earliest possible call date . The 
refunding allows the College to realize the present 
value savings through a restructuring of the College’s 
debt . At June 30, 2010 and 2009, restricted cash in-
cludes $13,006,000 and $20,021,000, respectively of 
construction funds held by trustees that will be drawn 
down to fund various construction projects . 

The Series I bonds, which mature in 2039, currently 
bear variable interest rates payable monthly . Interest on 
the bonds is calculated on the basis of twelve thirty-day 
months for a 360-day year . pending the redemption 
of the Series F bonds, proceeds of the Series I bonds 
were deposited into a refunding account established 
under the indenture and held by the trustee and 
were invested in authorized investments as directed 
by the College . At June 30, 2009, the trust fund of 
$31,069,000 was available to service principal and 
interest obligations, which was fully repaid on July 1, 
2009 . Since the refunded bonds are no longer deemed 
to be outstanding for financial reporting purposes, 
neither the debt nor the irrevocable trust assets are 
included in the Statement of Financial position .

The College has a line of credit with a bank . The 
College may borrow up to $40 million with various 
terms and interest rates at lIBoR plus 1/5 of 1% . 
There is no amount outstanding on the line of credit  
as of June 30, 2010 .

Balances of outstanding bonds and notes payable at 
June 30 consisted of the following (in $000s):

 
  2010 2009

MHeFA, Series I, Variable Rate Demand Bonds, bearing interest  
at a daily rate, maturing July 2039 . The rate at June 30, 2010 was 0 .08% .  $57,385  $57,385 
MHeFA, Series H, Revenue Bonds issued at an interest rate of 4 .0%  
to 5 .0% maturing July 2033 . 52,650 53,400 

MHeFA, Series G, Variable Rate Demand Bonds, bearing interest  
at a daily rate, maturing July 2039 . The rate at June 30, 2010 was 0 .08% . 20,000 20,000 

MHeFA Capital Asset program, Series B & C, Variable Rate Demand Bonds, monthly  
amortization of principal with final payment due June 2010 . Interest rate reset semi-annually . — 722 

MHeFA, Series e, Variable Rate Demand Bonds, bearing interest  
at a daily rate, maturing July 2022 . The rate at June 30, 2010 was 0 .18% . 11,900  12,600 

notes payable promissory note, principal maturing July 2010 .The rate at  
June 30, 2010 was 1 .80% . 7,483  8,103 
total debt 149,418  152,210 
less unamortized bond issue costs  (838)  (879)
Add unamortized original issue premium 953  1,018 

   $149,533   $152,349 
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The total of the College’s bonds and notes payable 
described above matures as follows (in $000s):

In order to reduce exposure to floating interest rates 
on variable rate debt, in January 2008, the College 
entered into an interest rate swap agreement, with 
a term through 2039 . This swap effectively locks in 
a fixed rate of 3 .239% per annum . The agreement 
has a notional amount of $57,385,000 . At June 
30, 2010 and 2009, the market value of the swap 
agreement amounted to a liability of $6,816,000 and 
$4,176,000, respectively . The fair value of the swaps is 
the estimated amount that the College would receive 
or pay to terminate the agreement at the reporting 
date, taking into account current interest rates and the 
current credit worthiness of the swap counterparties . 
The value of the interest rate swap is reflected within 
accounts payable and accrued expenses on the State-
ment of Financial position . The change in fair value 
resulted in a loss of $2,640,000 in 2010 and a loss of 
$4,213,000 in 2009 reflected in nonoperating activi-
ties on the Statement of Activities . Additionally, the 
College paid net interest expense in association with 
the swap agreement of $1,758,000 and $1,308,000 
which is reflected as part of the net realized/unrealized 
loss on interest swap for the years ended June 30, 2010 
and 2009, respectively . This financial instrument nec-
essarily involves counterparty credit exposure and the 
College’s own nonperformance risk . The counterparty 
for this swap agreement is a major financial institution 
that meets the College’s criteria for financial stability 
and credit-worthiness .

The College has outstanding at June 30, 2010 fixed 
rate debt of $52,650,000 and variable rate debt 
of $96,768,000 . Included in variable rate debt is 
$57,385,000 of synthetic fixed debt which is debt that 
has an underlying variable rate but has an interest rate 
swap agreement that effectively locks in a fixed rate . 

The fair market value of the College’s fixed rate debt 
at June 30, 2010 approximates $57,297,000 . The 
College’s variable rate debt approximates fair value . 
Fair value for fixed and variable rate debt is based on 
estimates using current interest rates available for debt 
with equivalent maturities .

In the event that the College receives notice of 
any optional tender on its variable-rate bonds, or 
if the bonds become subject to mandatory tender, 
the purchase price of the bonds will be paid from 
the remarketing of such bonds . However, if the 
remarketing proceeds are insufficient, the College 
will be obligated to purchase the bonds tendered with 
internal liquidity .

9. Annuities and Unitrusts Payable

The College has split-interest agreements consisting 
primarily of annuities, pooled life income funds,  
and charitable remainder unitrusts for which the 
College may or may not serve as trustee . All split-
interest agreements are included in planned giving 
investments . Contributions are recognized at the date 
the trusts are established net of a liability for the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows to 
beneficiaries . The present value of payments is 
discounted at a rate of return that ranges from 4% to 
6% . The liability of $37,585,000 and $37,556,000  
at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, is adjusted 
during the term of the agreement for changes in 
actuarial assumptions . payments of income  
to beneficiaries are principally funded by the 
investment income of the related gift annuity and 
unitrust investments .

10. Pension Plans 

The College has a defined contribution, 
noncontributory annuity pension plan for faculty and 
administrative personnel administered by the teachers 
Insurance and Annuity Association and College 
Retirement equities Fund (“tIAA/CReF”) . under 
this plan, the College contributed $7,121,000 and 
$7,786,000 respectively, for the years ended June 30, 
2010 and 2009 .

2011  $8,963 
2012 1,705 
2013 1,725 
2014 1,940 
2015 2,260 
Thereafter 132,825 

total bonds and notes payable  $149,418 
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The College also has a defined benefit pension plan for 
classified office and service employees . 

The plan provides retirement and death benefits based 
on the highest of the last four years of consecutive 
earnings . Contributions to the plan are made in 
amounts sufficient to meet the minimum funding 
requirements set forth in the employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974 .

The measurement date of determining the benefit 
obligations and net periodic benefit cost was June 30, 
2010 and 2009 (in $000s) .

The amount expected to be recognized as amortization 
of prior net service cost and a component of net peri-
odic cost in the upcoming year is $64,000 .

expected benefit payments, net of participant 
contributions, are as follows (in $000s):

The College expects to make employer contributions 
into the plan of $3,000,000 in the 2011 fiscal year .

In selecting the long-term rate of return on assets, 
the College considered the average rate of earnings 
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to 

 2010 2009

Funded status   
Funded status  $(19,368)  $(15,866)

Components of net periodic benefit cost
 Service cost  $1,306   $1,162 
 Interest cost 2,393  2,212
 expected return on plan assets (1,767) (2,358)
 Amortization of prior service cost  64   67 
 Cost of prior events/net  

     loss on amortization 590   699 
 net periodic benefit cost  $2,586   $1,782

other changes in plan assets and benefit recognized 
obligations in unrestricted net assets  

 new net actuarial loss  $4,744   $12,099
 net loss on benefit costs  (1,179) 

Amortization of prior service cost  (64)  (71)
 total  $3,501   $12,028

Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial 
position consist of a liability  $(19,368)  $(15,866)

Amounts recognized in unrestricted net assets
 net prior service cost  $410   $474
 net actuarial loss  3,091   11,554
 total unrestricted net asset  $3,501   $12,028 

2011  $1,507
2012  1,556
2013  1,650
2014  1,770
2015  1,952
2016–2020  13,395

 2010 2009

Assumptions used to  
determine benefit obligations:  

 Discount rate 5 .375% 6 .250%
 Rate of compensation increase 4 .000% 4 .000%

Assumptions used to determine  
net periodic benefit cost: 

 Discount rate 6 .250% 6 .875%
 expected return on plan assets 7 .800% 7 .800%
 Rate of compensation increase 4 .000% 4 .000%
  
Change in projected benefit obligation 
 Benefit obligation at end  

    of prior year  $39,107   $32,821 
 Service cost  

    (including expense load) 1,306  1,162 
 Interest cost 2,393  2,212 
 Actuarial loss 5,649  3,469 
 Benefits paid  (1,827)  (1,241)
 Administrative expenses paid  (7)  (10)
 Curtailments — 112 
 termination benefits — 582 

 Benefit obligation at end of year  $46,621   $39,107 

 Accumulated benefit obligation  $37,324   $31,470 
  
Change in plan assets  
 Fair value of plan assets at  

    end of prior year  $23,241   $30,765
 Actual return on plan assets  2,673   (6,273)
 employer contributions  3,173   —
 Benefits paid  (1,827)  (1,241)
 Administrative expenses paid  (7)  (10)
 Fair value of plan assets at  

    end of year  $27,253   $23,241 
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provide for the benefit of the plan . This included 
considering asset allocation and the expected returns 
likely to be earned over the life of the plan as well 
as assessing current valuation measures, income, 
economic growth and inflation forecasts, and historical 
risk premiums . This basis is consistent with prior years .

The investment objective and strategy of the plan 
is to achieve returns above the balanced composite 
benchmark and maintain a level of volatility which 
approximates that of the composite benchmark using 
the following asset allocation:

The following lists the plan’s asset allocation at June 
30, 2010 and 2009 (in $000s):

All pension plan assets are level 2 assets and all plan 
assets are in commingled funds .

The investment strategy for the pension assets is 
consistent with the approach to all other investment 
assets . The policies and strategies governing all 
investments for the College are designed to achieve 
targeted investment objectives while managing risk 
prudently . Risk management strategies include 
maintaining a diversified portfolio based on asset 
class, investment approach and security holdings . 
For the pension plan assets, an additional strategy 
is to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet benefit 
obligations as they become current .

11. Net Assets

net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2010 
and 2009 (in $000s):

12. Endowment

In August 2008, guidance was issued on endowments 
of not-for-profit organizations related to net asset 
classification of funds subject to an enacted version 
of the uniform prudent Management of Institutional 
Funds Act, and additional guidance was issued on 
enhanced disclosures for all endowment funds, which, 
among other things, provides guidance on the net asset 
classification of donor-restricted endowment funds 
for a not-for-profit organization that is subject to an 
enacted version of the uniform prudent Management 
of Institutional Funds Act of 2006 (upMIFA) 
and additional disclosures about an organization’s 
endowment funds .

The College’s endowment consists of approximately 
3,000 individual funds established for a variety of 
purposes . The endowment includes both donor-
restricted endowment funds and funds designed by 

Asset Category Target Allocation

 equity securities 60%
 Real estate investment trust 5%
 Commodities 5%
 Fixed income 27%
 Cash and equivalents 3%

total 100%

 Value at  
Asset Category June 30,  2010 2010 2009

 equity securities  $17,169  63% 63%
 Real estate investment trust 818  3% 4%
 Commodities 1,363  5% 5%
 Fixed income 7,358  27% 24%
 Cash and equivalents 545  2% 4%

total  $27,253  100% 100%

  2010 2009

unrestricted  
 Designated for specific  

    purposes and plant  $116,242   $111,150 
 Quasi-endowment  406,232   401,889 
 Deficiencies in donor- 

    restricted endowments  (5,281)  (6,587)
   517,193   506,452 

temporarily restricted  
 endowment and similar  

    funds including pledges  503,990   482,453 
 Annuity, life income and 

   unitrusts including pledges  26,613   24,681 
 Deficiencies in donor- 

    restricted endowments  5,281   6,587 
 other restricted  64,717   59,655 
   600,601   573,376 

permanently restricted  
 endowment including  

    pledges  416,777   409,020 
   416,777   409,020 
   $1,534,571   $1,488,848 
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   temporarily permanently  
  unrestricted restricted restricted total

Donor-restricted funds  $—   $482,983   $397,988   $880,971 
Board-designated and other unrestricted funds  449,273  — —  449,273 
   $449,273   $482,983   $397,988   $1,330,244 

tABle 19: endoWment net Asset ComPosition By tyPe oF Fund   
 as of June 30, 2010 (in $000s)

 
   temporarily permanently  
  unrestricted restricted restricted total

Donor-restricted funds  $—   $467,002   $390,469   $857,471 
Board-designated and other unrestricted funds  429,813  — —  429,813  
   $429,813   $467,002   $390,469   $1,287,284 

tABle 21: endoWment net Asset ComPosition By tyPe oF Fund   
 as of June 30, 2009 (in $000s)

 
   temporarily permanently  
  unrestricted restricted restricted total

endowment net assets, beginning of year  $429,813   $467,002   $390,469   $1,287,284 
Investment income, net of expenses  (180)  (268) —  (448)
net appreciation (realized and unrealized)  44,251   72,606  —  116,857 

Subtotal  473,884   539,340   390,469   1,403,693 
Contributions and transfers to endowment  4,645   999   7,519   13,163 
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure  (29,256)  (57,356) —  (86,612)

endowment net assets, end of year  $449,273   $482,983   $397,988   $1,330,244 

tABle 20: endoWment net Assets   
 for the year ended June 30, 2010 (in $000s)

 
   temporarily permanently  
  unrestricted restricted restricted total

endowment net assets, beginning of year  $542,302   $702,183   $384,962   $1,629,447 
Investment income, net of expenses  856   1,665  —  2,521 
net depreciation (realized and unrealized)  (91,411)  (183,600) —  (275,011)

 Subtotal  451,747   520,248   384,962   1,356,957 
Contributions and transfers to endowment  5,186   833   5,507   11,526 
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure  (27,120)  (54,079) —  (81,199)

endowment net assets, end of year  $429,813   $467,002   $390,469   $1,287,284 

tABle 22: endoWment net Assets   
 for the year ended June 30, 2009 (in $000s)
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the Board of trustees to function as endowments . net 
assets associated with endowment funds, including 
funds designated by the Board of trustees to function 
as endowments, are classified and reported based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions . 

See table 19 on page 41 for the endowment net asset 
composition by type of fund at June 30, 2010 .

See table 20 on page 41 for changes in endowment 
net assets for the year ended June 30, 2010 .

See table 21 on page 41 for the endowment net asset 
composition by type of fund at June 30, 2009 .

See table 22 on page 41 for changes in endowment 
net assets for the year ended June 30, 2009 .

13. Commitments and Contingencies

In 1975 the College identified the presence of soil 
tainted with various hazardous materials on the site of 
an abandoned 19th century paint factory acquired by 
the College in 1932 . In 1991, the College arranged 
for the excavation of contaminated soils from two 
waste piles and a wastewater settling basin formerly 
associated with the paint factory .

After the contaminated material was removed, the area 
was capped and seeded . These actions were undertaken 
in accordance with plans approved by the Department 
of environmental protection (Dep) on July 5, 1991 . 
The College has continued to work with the Dep and 
has completed the process of remediating and restor-
ing approximately 30 acres of land referred to as the 
upland site . The College began in April 2001 excavat-
ing and consolidating contaminated soils from the 
upland, wetland, and pond (“upland/Wetland/pond”) 
portions of the site . The soils have been treated and 
consolidated on site under a permanent engineered 
barrier . The capped area has been developed into three 
playing fields, an eight lane all weather track, and a 
softball field and was completed in october 2002 . The 
cost of this project was $32 .8 million; $10 million 
has been funded from a HeFA bond issuance and the 
remainder from unrestricted endowment . Costs associ-
ated with the campus improvement project are capital-

ized as land improvements . Costs incurred to remedi-
ate this property are charged to expense when they can 
be estimated . ongoing expenses associated with the 
monitoring and maintenance of the engineered barrier 
are charged to operations . total expenses for this proj-
ect were $112,000 and $200,000, respectively for the 
years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 . The College has 
purchased an insurance policy to cover cost overruns 
associated with the upland/Wetland/pond project as 
well as the assessment, monitoring, and, if necessary, 
remediation of contaminated groundwater located 
under the uplands/Wetlands/pond area . In September 
2004, the College submitted a report to Dep recom-
mending that no remedial action be taken in respect 
of the groundwater portion of the site beyond periodic 
monitoring of hexavalent chromium concentrations . 
Dep has not yet responded to this report .

In 2001, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and the 
College entered an agreement pursuant to which the 
Commonwealth agreed to share in the cost of dredging 
the northern Shoreline and Western Cove portion of 
lake Waban, with the Commonwealth’s share capped 
at $1 .4 million . The dredging project was completed 
in 2002 at a total cost of approximately $1 .2 million . 
Additional reimbursable costs of approximately 
$100,000 were incurred after the completion of 
dredging . In three payments made in 2005 and 2006, 
the Commonwealth reimbursed the College a total 
of approximately $1 .06 million, fully satisfying the 
Commonwealth’s reimbursement obligations under 
the 2001 cost-sharing agreement . In a report filed with 
Dep in May 2005, the College recommended that no 
remedial action be taken in portions of lake Waban 
beyond the northern Shoreline and Western Cove, 
apart from periodic monitoring of water quality and 
fish-growth patterns . Dep responded favorably to this 
report in a letter dated october 2005 . The periodic 
monitoring program was initiated in 2008 . The cost 
of this program is insignificant . The lower Waban 
Brook remedial project was originally anticipated 
to be undertaken in 2009 and was estimated to cost 
$3,600,000 . early project designs based upon risk 
assessments and feasibility studies performed prior 
to 2000 were not embraced by all constituents as 
satisfactory . Additional hydrological data gathering 
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has been undertaken in keeping with proposals still 
under review with Dep, with the intent to develop 
an updated feasibility study and remedy selection 
process . It is desirable but not yet clear whether a new 
process will result in material increases to previous 
project cost estimates . For the years ending June 
30, 2010 and 2009, total expenses to the lower 
Waban Brook remedial project were $100,000 and 
$339,000, respectively . A liability of $2,825,000 and 
$2,914,000 has been recorded as of June 30, 2010 and 
2009, respectively and is included in the Statement 
of Financial position within accounts payable and 
accrued expenses .

outstanding commitments amounted to approxi-
mately $191,549,000 and $257,244,000 as of June 
30, 2010 and 2009, respectively for the following:

under the terms of certain limited partnership 
agreements, the College is obliged to periodically 
advance additional funding for private equity 
investments . Such commitments generally have fixed 
expiration dates or other termination clauses . The 
College maintains sufficient liquidity in its investment 
portfolio to cover such calls .

The College built a gas-fired cogeneration plant 
capable of producing 7 .5 megawatts of electricity . 
The plant supplies electricity for the entire campus . 
The College pays the town $111,000 annually as a 
guarantee for back-up power, at cost, to the College . 
This contract is in force until May 2013 .

The College has several legal cases pending that 
have arisen in the normal course of its operations . 
The College believes that the outcome of these cases 
will have no material adverse effect on the financial 
position of the College .

  2010 2009

Alternative investments  $182,619,000   $242,706,000 
Construction contracts  8,930,000   14,538,000 
  $191,549,000   $257,244,000 
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